
Regeneration and 
Development Panel
Agenda

Wednesday, 6th January, 2016
at 6.00 pm

in the

Committee Suite
King’s Court
Chapel Street
King’s Lynn
PE30 1EX



If you require parts of this document in another  language, large print, audio, Braille or any alternative 

format please contact the Council Information Centre on 01553 616200 and we will do our best to 

help.

LATVIAN
Ja Jums nepieciešamas daļas no šī dokumenta citā valodā, lielā drukā, audio, Braila rakstā vai 

alternatīvā formātā, lūdzu, sazinieties ar Padomes informācijas centru (Council Information Centre) pa 

01553 616200 un mēs centīsimies Jums palīdzēt.

RUSSIAN
Если вам нужны части этого документа на другом языке, крупным шрифтом, шрифтом Брайля, 

в аудио- или ином формате, обращайтесь в Информационный Центр Совета по тел.: 01553 

616200, и мы постараемся вам помочь.

LITHUANIAN
Jei pageidaujate tam tikros šio dokumento dalies kita kalba, dideliu šriftu, Brailio raštu, kitu formatu ar 

norite užsisakyti garso įrašą, susisiekite su Savivaldybės informacijos centru (Council Information 

Centre) telefonu 01553 616200 ir mes pasistengsime jums kiek įmanoma padėti.

POLISH
Jeśli pragną Państwo otrzymać fragmenty niniejszego dokumentu w innym języku, w dużym druku, w 

formie nagrania audio, alfabetem Braille’a lub w jakimkolwiek innym alternatywnym formacie, prosimy 

o kontakt z Centrum Informacji Rady pod numerem 01553 616200, zaś my zrobimy, co możemy, by 

Państwu pomóc.

PORTUGUESE
Se necessitar de partes deste documento em outro idioma, impressão grande, áudio, Braille ou 

qualquer outro formato alternativo, por favor contacte o Centro de Informações do Município pelo 

01553 616200, e faremos o nosso melhor para ajudar.



King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

17th December 2015

Dear Member

Regeneration and Development Panel

You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Panel which will be held 
on Wednesday, 6th January, 2016 at 6.00 pm in the Committee Suite, King's 
Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn to discuss the business shown below.

Yours sincerely 

Chief Executive

AGENDA

1.  Apologies for absence  

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  Minutes  (Pages 7 - 15)

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 

3.  Declarations of Interest  

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not already 
declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it relates.  
If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Member should withdraw 
from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

Those declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part 
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply 
observing the meeting from the public seating area. 

4.  Urgent Business  



To consider any business which, by reason of special circumstances, the 
Chairman proposes to accept as urgent under Section 100(b)(4)(b) of the 
Local Government Act, 1972. 

5.  Members Present Pursuant to Standing Order 34  

Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the 
Chairman of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard 
before the meeting commences.  Any Member attending the meeting under 
Standing Order 34 will only be permitted to speak on those items which have 
been previously notified to the Chairman. 

6.  Chairman's Correspondence  

If any. 

7.  Matters referred to the Panel from other Council Bodies and responses 
made to previous Panel recommendations/requests  

To receive comments and recommendations from other Council bodies, and 
any responses subsequent to recommendations, which the Panel has 
previously made.

None. 

8.  Cabinet Report - Lynnsport Development  (Pages 16 - 18)

The above report is on the Cabinet Forward Decision List for 12 January 2016 
and has been identified by the Chairman for consideration by the Panel.

The Panel are requested to consider the report and make any appropriate 
recommendations to Cabinet. 

9.  Exclusion of Press and Public  

To consider passing the following resolution:

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act”. 

10.  EXEMPT Cabinet Report - Proposed Surgery Development - King's Lynn  
(Pages 19 - 27)

The above report is on the Cabinet Forward Decision List for 12 January 2016 
and has been identified by the Chairman for consideration by the Panel.

The Panel are requested to consider the report and make any appropriate 
recommendations to Cabinet.

 

11.  EXEMPT Cabinet Report - Nar Ouse Regeneration Area - proposed sale 



of land  (Pages 28 - 33)

The above report is on the Cabinet Forward Decision List for 12 January 2016 
and has been identified by the Chairman for consideration by the Panel.

The Panel are requested to consider the report and make any appropriate 
recommendations to Cabinet.

 

12.  EXEMPT Cabinet Report - King's Lynn Land Acquisition - Boal Quay and 
the Friars  (Pages 34 - 40)

The above report is on the Cabinet Forward Decision List for 12 January 2016 
and has been identified by the Chairman for consideration by the Panel.

The Panel are requested to consider the report and make any appropriate 
recommendations to Cabinet.
 

13.  EXEMPT Cabinet Report - King's Lynn Land Acquisition - Wisbech Road  
(Pages 41 - 48)

The above report is on the Cabinet Forward Decision List for 12 January 2016 
and has been identified by the Chairman for consideration by the Panel.

The Panel are requested to consider the report and make any appropriate 
recommendations to Cabinet.
 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

14.  Work Programme and Forward Decisions List  (Pages 49 - 54)

To consider the Work Programme.  

In considering the Work Programme Members’ attention is drawn to the 
Cabinet Forward Decision List. 

15.  Date of the next meeting  

To note that the next meeting of the Regeneration & Development Panel is 
scheduled to take place on Wednesday 27th January 2016 at 4.00pm in the 
Committee Suite, King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 
1EX. 

To:

Regeneration and Development Panel: Councillors Mrs J Collingham, C Crofts, 
M Chenery of Horsbrugh, M Howland, P Kunes, Mrs K Mellish (Chairman), 
M Shorting, J M Tilbury, A Tyler, Mrs E Watson, D Whitby and Mrs A Wright (Vice-
Chairman)



Portfolio Holders:

Councillor A Beales - Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and 
Industrial Assets
Councillor D Pope – Portfolio Holder for ICT, Leisure and Public Space

Officers:

Chris Bamfield – Executive Director
Matthew Henry – Property Services Manager

Executive Directors



468

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT PANEL

Minutes from the Meeting of the Regeneration and Development Panel held 
on Wednesday, 25th November, 2015 at 4.00 pm in the Committee Suite, 

King's Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn

PRESENT: Councillors Mrs K Mellish (Chairman), 
T Bubb (substitute for D Whitby), Mrs J Collingham, C Crofts, 

M Chenery of Horsbrugh, Mrs E Nockolds, J M Tilbury, 
Mrs E Watson and Mrs A Wright

Portfolio Holders:

Councillor A Beales – Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and 
Industrial Assets.
Councillor B Long – Portfolio Holder for Environment
Councillor Mrs E Nockolds – Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health.

Officers:

Chris Bamfield – Executive Director
Mark Fuller – Principal Project Surveyor
Ray Harding – Chief Executive
Tim Humphreys – Tourism Manager

By Invitiation:

Eliska Cheeseman – Norfolk County Council
Vince Muspratt – Norfolk County Council
Paul Searle – Destination Management Plan

RD1:  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Daubney, 
Howland, Shorting, Tyler and Whitby.

RD2:  MINUTES 

RESOLVED: The minutes from the joint meeting held on 28th October 
2015 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

RD3:  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There was none.

RD4:  URGENT BUSINESS 

7

Agenda Item 2



469

There was none.

RD5:  MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34 

There was none.

RD6:  CHAIRMAN'S CORRESPONDENCE 

There was none.

RD7:  MATTERS REFERRED TO THE PANEL FROM OTHER 
COUNCIL BODIES AND RESPONSES MADE TO PREVIOUS 
PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS/REQUESTS 

The Panel noted the response made by Cabinet to the 
recommendations from the Joint Panel Meeting on 28 October 2015 in 
respect of the following items:

 Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Fees.
 Gambling Act Policies
 Licensing Act Policies.  

RD8:  NORFOLK RURAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY UPDATE AND 
LOCAL STRATEGY FOR THE WEST NORFOLK LEADER 
PROGRAMME 

The Chairman welcomed Vince Muspratt and Eliska Cheeseman to the 
Meeting who provided an update on the Norfolk Rural Development 
Strategy, West Norfolk Local Action Group and other support for 
accessing EU funding.

A copy of the presentation is attached at Appendix 1.

The Chairman thanked officers for their presentation and invited 
questions and comments from the Panel as summarised below.

In response to a question from Councillor Baron Chenery of Horsbrugh 
it was explained that the West Norfolk Local Action Group comprised 
50% private sector representatives, a Borough Council representative 
(the Economic Development Officer), representatives from the National 
Farmers Union and Community Action Norfolk and was supported by 
officers from Norfolk County Council.  Eliska Cheeseman explained 
that it would be beneficial if there were more private sector 
representatives on the Group and informed those present that if they 
knew anyone who would like to be involved to contact her.  

In response to a further question from Councillor Baron Chenery of 
Horsbrugh regarding Broadband and Mobile Phone coverage, it was 

8



470

explained that a Digital Divide Group had been established and were 
campaigning for broadband and mobile coverage improvements.  
Eliska Cheeseman explained that the group received the roll out plans 
and downtimes from the main mobile providers and had received 
presentations from them.  She explained that sometimes there were 
down time periods of about six weeks during reconfiguration of masts 
and infrastructure.  The Digital Divide Group was campaigning for 
increased mobile coverage in rural areas.

Councillor Mrs Watson explained that she was concerned with housing 
needs.  She felt that it was problematic on the Coast as there was little 
affordable housing provision and social housing was being sold.  She 
commented that it was important to provide affordable homes along the 
Coast to enable people to remain in the area.  Eliska Cheeseman 
explained that this had been recognised as an issue in the Rural 
Development Strategy and there was a need to provide housing so that 
young people did not leave the area due to lack of appropriate housing.  
The Panel was informed that this was not something that the private 
sector could solve alone, so incentives could be looked at on how 
social housing could be provided and business owners could 
investigate how the needs of their labour forces could be met.

Vince Muspratt commented that the Rural Development Strategy would 
not solve all problems, but it could help communities to develop ways 
of working together.  The funding available for communities could 
assist them in looking at housing needs and communities could carry 
out initiatives or create Community Housing Trusts if they were willing 
to become involved and take ownership.  The Vice Chairman, 
Councillor Mrs Wright asked if this was something that Borough 
Councillors could promote within their Constituency and it was 
explained that the option could be explored and if there was a desire to 
proceed there was the possibility that some funding could be available.

In response to a question from the Vice Chairman, Eliska Cheeseman 
provided an example of the types of businesses which could benefit 
from ESF and ERDF Funding.  She explained that it would be available 
to businesses looking to grow and create jobs within the key sector 
areas.  There were few restrictions, only that the business had to be 
small and retail businesses were excluded.  The LEADER grant 
funding was available in rural areas and grant applications were 
considered by the Local Action Group.  The West Norfolk Local Action 
Group had identified six priority areas as set out in the presentation.

Councillor Tilbury commented that the funding opportunities seemed to 
be relatively small scale and was informed by Vice Muspratt that there 
was funding available from the Local Enterprise Partnership for larger 
scale development.  The LEADER, ESF and ERDF funding was 
working from the bottom up and focussed on micro businesses which 
were unable to compete for bigger funding opportunities.  Vince 
Muspratt explained that Norfolk County Council officers were available 

9



471

to provide advice and guidance to businesses who wanted to bid for 
funding.

Councillor Tilbury commented that until this meeting he was unaware 
of the existence of the West Norfolk Local Action Group.  Vince 
Muspratt explained that it had been a challenge to raise awareness of 
the group and the opportunities available.  He explained that the 
Economic Development Officers who were representatives on the 
Group were kept up to date on progress.

The Chairman commented that it would be beneficial for the Panel to 
receive updates from the Economic Development Officer at the 
Borough Council as appropriate.  The Chairman also requested that if 
any information was available on the potential formation of Community 
Housing Trusts that it be circulated to the Panel.

In response to a question from the Chairman it was explained that the 
current status of the LEADER funding was that businesses could now 
apply for funding and the Local Action Group would meet in the New 
Year to assess the applications.  Work was ongoing to promote the 
availability of the grant funding.  The Portfolio Holder for Culture 
Heritage and Health, Councillor Mrs Nockolds commented that the 
availability of the LEADER funding had been promoted at a recent 
meeting of the West Norfolk Tourism Forum.

The Portfolio Holder for Environment, Councillor Long asked where 
businesses should be directed if there were having difficulty with 
broadband connection.  The Panel was informed that funding was 
unavailable through the LEADER programme for broadband as this 
was covered by the Better Broadband for Norfolk roll out.  She 
explained that the programme was ongoing to improve connectivity in 
the area.  Vouchers were available to businesses that could not be 
connected through the scheme and businesses should contact Norfolk 
County Council.

The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and 
Industrial Assets, Councillor Beales, commented that the funding 
available through the scheme could be useful to small local businesses 
and the tourism sector.  He reminded those present that funding 
opportunities had been available previously and this was the next 
round of available funding.

RESOLVED: (i) The update was noted.
(ii) The Panel be kept informed of progress as appropriate.

RD9:  ARTS CENTRE REDEVELOPMENT 

The Principal Project Surveyor provided the Panel with an update on 
the King’s Lynn Arts Centre Complex as attached.  The Panel was 
provided with an overview of the history of the Arts Centre, the different 

10



472

buildings which comprised the centre and current issues and problems.  
Members of the Panel had been invited on a tour of the Arts Centre 
prior to the meeting.

The Chairman thanked the Principal Project Surveyor for his 
presentation and invited questions and comments from the Panel, as 
summarised below.

Councillor Crofts explained that he felt the buildings were under used 
and asked if consideration had been given to holding antique fairs in 
the Arts Centre.  The Principal Project Surveyor explained that 
consideration had been given to dividing the White Barn into workshop 
spaces and other options could be considered in the future.

Councillor Mrs Collingham commented that it was important to 
introduce a commercial Management Structure to the Arts Centre to 
make it economically viable, whilst underpinning the Arts.

In response to a question from Councillor Baron Chenery of Horsbrugh, 
it was explained that the next stage was to engage with stakeholders 
and review options with a view to presenting them to Members in 
March 2016.  Subject to Member approval it was proposed that an 
initial project enquiry be submitted to the Heritage Lottery Fund in 
spring 2016.  The Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health 
explained that she had already spoken to some stakeholders regarding 
the future of the Arts Centre.

Councillor Bubb commented that there was lack of connectivity 
between the buildings and one solution could be to put a roof or 
canopy over the centre of the complex.

Councillor Mrs Watson commented that the Arts Centre appealed to a 
niche group of regular users who felt ownership of the space.  She 
explained that it was important to open up the space and raise 
awareness that it was open for everyone to enjoy.  She asked if it 
would be possible to show a plan of the Arts Centre complex in other 
Council owned buildings which could also advertise events and 
encourage people to visit the complex.

The Executive Director explained that as part of the Heritage Lottery 
Fund application it would have to be proven that there was public 
support for the project, so the public would be engaged in the 
consultation process of the Council determined to proceed.

Councillor Tilbury asked if any draft proposals had been considered 
and asked why upset the current operation of the Arts Centre.  The 
Chairman explained that the current complex was under used and 
could be better utilised.  Proposals would look at how to maximise the 
use of the space and become commercially viable.

11



473

The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and 
Industrial Assets explained that everyone had different ideas on the 
future of the Arts Centre and the next stage would be to engage with 
stakeholders.  He commented that the Arts Centre was not widely 
visible from the street and needed to be opened up in order to draw 
people to the site.  He felt that the Arts Centre needed to be 
commercial, but a sensitive approach was required to underpin the Arts 
offer.  He felt that the Arts Centre was a hidden gem.

The Vice Chairman, Councillor Mrs Wright felt that the complex 
comprised an exciting group of buildings and agreed that a commercial 
approach was necessary whilst underpinning the Arts.  She 
commented that she would be hesitant of an Arts Council National 
Portfolio Funded approach.

The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Industrial Assets reminded 
those present that the availability of funding was uncertain at the 
moment and would be required in order to make it sustainable.

In response to a question from Councillor Crofts, the Executive Director 
explained that nothing had been ruled out at this stage and there was 
the potential that part of the venue could be utilised as a wedding 
venue.  The Town Hall was currently in high demand as a venue and 
often fully booked; the Arts Centre could be a good alternative venue 
and would be commercially viable.

RESOLVED: (i) The update was noted.
(ii) The Panel to be kept updated on progress.

RD10:  DESTINATION MANAGEMENT PLAN 

The Tourism Manager presented the West Norfolk Destination 
Management Plan.  He introduced Paul Searle to the Panel who had 
been involved in the creation of the Plan and was a Member of the 
West Norfolk Tourism Forum Executive Committee.  The Tourism 
Manager explained that the plan had been developed to provide a 
framework of objectives and actions over the next five years for 
increasing the value that visitor spending could make to the local 
economy throughout the Borough of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk.  
This approach was being actively encouraged by organisations 
including Visit England and the Local Enterprise Partnerships.  The 
plan included proposals on how the overall destination, locations and 
products could be branded and promoted and provided an 
understanding of how other destination management organisation and 
tourism bodies could work to meet the needs of the visitor economy in 
West Norfolk.  The Tourism Manager provided an overview of key 
issues reviewed and the resultant aims and objectives of the plan.

A copy of the Tourism Managers presentation is attached.

12



474

Paul Searle addressed the Panel and explained that a lot of work had 
been done to bring the plan into fruition.  He referred to the plan’s 
objectives and aims and felt that it was important to promote West 
Norfolk as a visitor destination.  Increasing visitor stay was important 
and the tourism experience needed to be developed.  Work should be 
carried out to capitalize on day trippers and encourage them to stay in 
the area for longer periods.  It was important to continue developing 
activities and events to give a reason for people to come to the area, 
which would have a knock on effect on local businesses and the local 
economy.

Paul Searle congratulated all those involved in creation of the plan and 
commented that it was supported by the tourism industry.

The Chairman thanked the Tourism Manager and Paul Searle for their 
presentation and invited questions and comments from the Panel, as 
summarised below.

Councillor Crofts asked if opportunities could be created for touring 
caravans to stop in King’s Lynn as most remained along the coast.  He 
referred to the waterfront area and asked if there was potential for this 
to be used as a caravan park.  Paul Searle explained that he had not 
considered the potential for a touring caravan park in King’s Lynn as 
caravans tended to be located in rural locations; however, this was 
something that could be investigated in the future if required.  He 
emphasised the importance of continually offering ideas and 
encouraging visitors to experience activities and attractions across the 
local area.

Councillor Mrs Watson referred to the Coasthopper bus service and felt 
that the service was not as good as it had been previously.  She felt the 
service did not link up with rail services as well as it had done in the 
past. She suggested that more could be done to promote Farmers 
Markets and she commented that she had visited many of these 
Markets and they always tended to be busy.  She commented that the 
cover of the Destination Management Plan did not stand out and was 
too familiar.  Paul Searle explained that this was the first Destination 
Management Plan which had been created and the plan was not to be 
confused with a brochure for the area, it would be used by businesses.  
The Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health reiterated that the 
document was for businesses and it identified opportunities for them 
locally, it was not to be confused with a visitor guide.

Councillor Mrs Collingham commented that it was important to improve 
the King’s Lynn offer as she felt that currently there was not enough to 
do to spend the day in King’s Lynn, particularly for children.  She 
explained that the events drew people in, but often not enough cafes 
etc. were open to support the increased amount of visitors.  The 
Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health, Councillor Mrs 
Nockolds explained that the Destination Management Plan would be 

13



475

used to encourage businesses to maximise their potential and improve 
the overall offer of the area.

It was suggested that there was a need for more available activities 
and attractions during periods of poor weather.  Public conveniences 
also needed to be improved.  The Tourism Manager explained that in 
order to capitalise there was a need to promote the attractions 
available and encourage visitors to stay in the area for longer periods 
of time.  He referred to the LEADER funding which was available for 
small businesses in West Norfolk.

The Vice Chairman, Councillor Mrs Wright felt that the area had a 
considerable Heritage offer and Heritage trails should be promoted 
across the Borough.  She explained that one of her concerns was the 
high levels of traffic particularly throughout the summer.  The Tourism 
Manager noted that this had been highlighted in the plan.

The Chairman, Councillor Mrs Mellish commented that she felt that 
most of the tourism promotion focussed on the Northern Area.  The 
Tourism Manager commented that the whole of West Norfolk was 
considered within the plan with the emphasis placed on spreading 
tourism visits and spending across the area and more widely 
throughout the seasons.

Councillor Crofts commented that Norfolk tourism was seasonal and for 
consideration to be given to encourage off season tourists.

Councillor Baron Chenery of Horsbrugh commented that branding was 
important and that West Norfolk should be branded separately to North 
Norfolk.

Councillor Mrs Collingham commented that more activities should be 
available during wet weather particularly for children and families.

The Chairman thanked the Tourism Manager and Paul Searle for the 
information provided at the meeting.

RESOLVED: The Regeneration and Development Panel supported the 
recommendations as follows:

1. That the Borough Council considers and endorses this plan as the 
tourism industry’s assessment of the issues and opportunities for 
sustainably increasing the contribution that visitor spending makes to 
the economy of West Norfolk.

2. That annually, the Borough Council receives a presentation and report 
on the progress and any changes to the Destination Management 
Plan.

RD11:  WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD DECISIONS LIST 

14



476

The Chairman informed those present that if they had any suggestions 
for items to be added to the Work Programme they could email her at 
any time.

RESOLVED: The Work Plan and Forward Decision List was noted.

RD12:  DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Regeneration and Development Panel was 
scheduled to take place on Wednesday 6 January 2015 at 6.00pm in 
the Committee Suite, King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, 
PE30 1EX.

The meeting closed at 5.50 pm

15



 
REPORT TO CABINET

Open
 
Any especially 
affected 
Wards

Operational

Would any decisions proposed :

Be entirely within Cabinet’s powers to decide YES
Need to be recommendations to Council     NO

Is it a Key Decision NO

Other Cabinet Members consulted: Cllr Nick Daubney, 
Cllr Greville Howard, Cllr Alistair Beales

Lead Member: Cllr David Pope
E-mail: cllr.david.pope@west-norfolk.gov.uk

Other Members consulted: 

Lead Officer:  Chris Bamfield
E-mail: chris.bamfield@west-norfolk.gov.uk
Direct Dial:01553 616648

Other Officers consulted: Lorraine Gore, Dale Gagen, 
Neil Gromett, Ray Harding, Matthew Henry

Financial 
Implications 
YES

Policy/Personnel 
Implications
NO

Statutory 
Implications  
NO

Equal Impact 
Assessment 
NO

Risk Management 
Implications
YES

Date of meeting: 12 January 2016

LYNNSPORT DEVELOPMENT

Summary 

The report proposed amendments to the current agreements/leases with Alive 
Leisure and Alive Management for future operation of the new tennis courts 
and multi-purpose synthetic pitch including the appointment of a Tennis 
Development Officer.

The new facilities are expected to open for public use in late March or early 
April 2016.

Recommendation

Cabinet is recommended to;
 Agree to incorporate the management of the new facilities at Lynnsport 

in the current arrangements with Alive Leisure and Alive Management.
 Agree the appointment of a three year Tennis Development Officer to 

maximise use of the new courts.

Reason for Decision

To enable effective operation of the new leisure facilities on the Lynnsport 
site.

16

Agenda Item 8



1. Background

1.1 Development of the major housing project for Lynnsport and Marsh Lane 
will provide a number of benefits for leisure at Lynnsport.

1.2 New access road from Edward Benefer Way and 200 new car parking 
spaces – completed early in 2017.

1.3 Relocation of 1 x Pelicans pitch.

1.4 A new multi-use pitch adjacent to the Pelicans site available for general 
hire.

1.5 Four new floodlit tennis courts.

1.6 The multi-use and tennis facilities are expected to be completed in 
March 2016.

2. Management and Operation

2.1 The new facilities will need to be integrated into the operational 
arrangements for leisure involving the Trust (Alive Leisure) and the LAC 
(Local Authority Company Alive Management).

2.2 The Council will need to amend the existing agreements with the Alive 
Leisure Trust;
 Lease plans amended to include the one new public multi-

purpose pitch, four tennis courts and new car park in the lease.
 Management agreement amended to include the details of the 

new facilities.

2.3 The Trust would pass on the operational responsibility through the 
existing back to back agreement for the LAC (Local Authority Company 
Alive Management) to carry out day to day operations for the new 
facilities.

2.4 The Council to require the LAC to carry out maintenance of the new 
leisure facilities and car park and control the utilities costs.

2.5 In terms of the financial Council support for the tennis/multi-use 
combined as a Trading area it is proposed that this is initially excluded 
from the current Management Fee but amended during the year when 
the overall revenue projection can be accurately based on actual 
income/expenditure.  This may mean an adjustment either up or down to 
the Management Fee.

2.6 In the spirit of the open arrangements this would be considered the best 
approach considering the lack of detailed historical information to ensure 
neither party is disadvantaged.

17



2.7 To ensure the new courts are well used, the LTA require a Tennis 
Development Officer is to be appointed to generate sales of court time 
and develop a broad programme of coaching and casual use of the new 
courts.  The aim of the new facilities will be to develop a sustainable 
business model for tennis in which operating costs are covered by 
income.  It is anticipated that the coaching programme and use of the 
courts will take time to develop but breakeven during Year 3.  In the first 
three years it is estimated that there will be a shortfall in the revenue 
budget forecast of £30,980.  The LTA have agreed to underwrite 50% of 
this initial cost and requested the Council to give the same level of 
support.

3. Financial Implications

3.1 The three year forecast for loss on tennis courts is anticipated as 
£30,980 of which £15,490 could fall to the Council.

3.2 The hire of the new multi-purpose pitch is estimated to achieve a surplus 
of £21,000 over the first three years.

3.3 It is estimated that the £15,490 loss on the Tennis can be covered by the 
£21,000 surplus on the new multi-purpose pitch with a small net surplus.

3.4 A separate Trading Account is to be maintained for the Tennis/Multi-
purpose pitch and adjustments made in consultation with Alive Leisure 
and Alive Management during the year.

3.5 Overall any financial implications are likely to be minimal and can be 
contained within existing budgets.

4. Risk Management

4.1 The LTA are committed to the project and will be supporting the Council 
and the Trust to make it sustainable.

4.2 The Tennis Development Management will be a three year fixed term 
post recruited by Alive Leisure.  At the end of the three years, should 
tennis not be self-funding, the post would be terminated.  It is likely that 
tennis would then become a pay and play option at Lynnsport with a 
reduced coaching programme.

18



Document is Restricted

19

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

28

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

34

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

40

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

41

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

48

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



16/12/2015

REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT WORK PROGRAMME 2015/2016

25 November 2015 at 4.00pm – meeting to be preceded by a tour of the Arts Centre at 3pm

 Arts Centre Redevelopment
 Destination Management Plan – Tim Humphries
 Norfolk Rural Development Strategy Update and Local Strategy for the West Norfolk LEADER Programme – Vince 

Muspratt and Eliska Cheeseman – Norfolk County Council 

6 January 2016 – 6.00pm

 Cabinet Report – Lynnsport Development
 EXEMPT Cabinet Report – Proposed Development – King’s Lynn
 EXEMPT Cabinet Report – Nar Ouse Regeneration Area Proposed Sale of Land
 EXEMPT Cabinet Report – King’s Lynn Land Acquisition – Boal Quay and the Friars
 EXEMPT Cabinet Report – King’s Lynn Land Acquisition – Wisbech Road

27 January 2016 – 4.00pm

 Capital Programme
 Budget
 Hunstanton Heritage Gardens HLF Stage 2 submission – Laura Hampshire

24 February 2016 – 6.00pm

 Highways works – Quentin Brogdale – Norfolk County Council

23 March 2016 – 4.00pm – venue – Education Room, Town Hall
Please note that the Town Hall will be open from 2.30pm to 4.00pm for Members.  Officers will be on hand to answer any 
questions.

 Update on Town Hall Works
 Update on the Arts Centre

49

A
genda Item

 14



16/12/2015

20 April 2016 – 6.00pm

To be confirmed
 Tour of the NORA Housing site and King’s Lynn Innovation Centre.

50



FORWARD DECISIONS LIST

Date of 
meeting

Report title Description 
of report

Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

12 January
2016

Final Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2016/17

Key Council Leader
Asst Exec Dir – L Gore

Public

Housing Benefit and Council 
Tax Support Risk Based 
Verification: Policy Update

Key Council Leader
Asst Exec Dir – L Gore

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

2015/16 Budget Monitoring Non Cabinet Leader
Asst Exec Dir – L Gore

Public

Smoke and Carbon 
Monoxide Alarm 
Regulations 2015

Non Cabinet Housing and Community
Chief Executive

Public

Corporate Business Plan 
2015-19

Key Council Chief Executive Public

Proposed Surgery 
Development – King’s Lynn

Key Council Regeneration& Industrial Assets
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private-  Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Nar Ouse Regeneration 
Area – proposed sale of 
land

Key Cabinet Regeneration & Industrial Assets
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private- Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 

51



business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

King’s Lynn Land 
Acquisition – Boal Quay and 
the Friars

Key Council Regeneration & Industrial Assets
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private- Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

King’s Lynn Land 
Acquisition – Wisbech Road

Key Council Regeneration & Industrial Assets
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private- Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Lynnsport Development Non Cabinet ICT Leisure & Public Space
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Public

Update to the scheme of 
delegation

Non Council Leader
Exec Dir – D Gates

Public

Appointment of Young 
Persons Champion and 
Heritage Champion

Non Cabinet Leader
Exec Dir – D Gates

Public

Date of 
meeting

Report title Description 
of report

Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

2 February 
2016

Budget 2016/17 Key Council Leader
Asst Exec Dir – L Gore

Public

Asset Management : Land 
with Development Potential

Key Council Regeneration & Industrial Assets
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private- Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 

52



information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

King’s Lynn: Strategic Land 
Acquisition

Key Council Regeneration & Industrial Assets
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private- Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Charging Policy for Electric 
Vehicles

Non Cabinet ICT Leisure & Public Space and 
Environment
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Public

Electoral Review Key Council Leader
Chief Executive

Public

Community Infrastructure 
Levy

Key Council Housing and Community
Exec Director – G Hall

Public

The Statement of 
Community Involvement

Non Cabinet Development
Exec Director G Hall

Public

Capital Programme 2015-
2020 

Key Council Leader
Asst Exec Dir – L Gore

Public

Affordable Housing 
Company

Non Cabinet Housing & Community
Chief Executive

Public

Procurement – Print 
Equipment

Key Cabinet Leader
Exec Dir – D Gates

Public

Date of 
meeting

Report title Description 
of report

Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

1 March 
2016

Date of 
meeting

Report title Description 
of report

Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

5 April 2016

53



54


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	8 Cabinet Report - Lynnsport Development
	10 EXEMPT Cabinet Report - Proposed Surgery Development - King's Lynn
	Proposed Surgery Development - Plan

	11 EXEMPT Cabinet Report - Nar Ouse Regeneration Area - proposed sale of land
	NORA proposed sale of land - Map

	12 EXEMPT Cabinet Report - King's Lynn Land Acquisition - Boal Quay and the Friars
	Boal Quay Plan 1
	Boal Quay Plan 2

	13 EXEMPT Cabinet Report - King's Lynn Land Acquisition - Wisbech Road
	Site Plan

	14 Work Programme and Forward Decisions List
	Cabinet Forward Decision List


